o U, WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
September 10, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Doug Paton. Absent: Brandon Tieso.

Staff: Rebecca Kaplan, Interim Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Paul Plante, Frank Tenney, Jonathan Davis, Krystyna Davenport Brown.

Posted Agenda:
7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)
7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, August 27, 2025
7:10 PM Markup & Approve Draft Decisions: DRB 25-119-SD/SDA(PRD) Davis
7:25 PM Debrief on PC/DRB/CCC August 20 Joint Meeting

7:35 PM Agenda item for PC/DRB/CCC Next Joint Meeting

7:45 PM Review of DRB Rules of Procedure

8:00 PM Adjourn

Call to Order/ changes to agenda:
Chair, Charles Russell, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Alexa Lewis suggested discussion
to identify a case study to present to the Planning Commission.

Public Comment:
None.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, August 27, 2025:

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for August 27, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Brandon Tieso was
absent.

Markup & Approve Draft Decisions: DRB 25-119-SD/SDA(PRD) Davis:

Lewis said she had several suggested changes and reviewed each. Lewis’ first change was
regarding deed restrictions barring the creation of additional lots with access off Woodland Way.

The second suggestion specified that the land swap is to provide a driveway for lot 2 through a
strip of land.

Lewis’ third revision made note that the land swap is of equal portion of land. Lewis then
discussed the rationale for review of the application as a Planned Residential Development (PRD). To
this, Gerald Bouchard questioned reference to a 3-lot PRD. Bouchard viewed the application as 2 lots.
Subsequent review of Land Use Regulations (LURs) concluded that the 3 lots are included in the PRD.
Lewis then clarified that the new subdivision is being reviewed as a PRD given that the Kerr lot is
included in the application.

Lewis asked that it be noted that no development is being considered at this time and asked for
an additional reference to best practices for stormwater management and erosion control for the creation
of the driveway and culvert.



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

page 2 Development Review Board 09/10/2025

Doug Paton had a point of clarification on common versus conserved land. Subsequent
discussion and consensus to remove reference from the draft.

Lewis then pointed out that open space, as approved by the Selectboard, would need to be
delineated on the final plat. This led to discussion of when the open space agreement would need to be
presented and approved to meet the 180-day submission and town recording deadline.

Paton asked for clarity on why a Highway Access Permit is needed prior to subdivision approval.
Lewis responded that there needs to be an understanding that a driveway will be permitted. Lewis
located the reference to this in LURs. Frank Tenney then spoke to procedure on the Highway Access
Permit being approved by the Selectboard and the approval of the subdivision application.

Gerald Bouchard presented grammatical errors and points of clarification that he had found in
the document.

Bouchard asked for an amended draft decision before the Development Review Board (DRB)
approves. Rebecca Kaplan will distribute an edited decision by September 15" for review and approval.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to continue deliberations via
email for DRB 25-119-SD/SDA(PRD) Davis, through September 15, 2025. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion
carried.

Debrief on PC/DRB/CCC August 20 Joint Meeting:

Lewis said she had two takeaways, one being that a session needs to be devoted to Transferrable
Development Rights (TDR). Lewis questioned if the Vermont League of Cities and Towns (VLCT)
might be able to assist in understanding the nuances.

Lewis then spoke to the mapping project that is being proposed by Charlotte’s Conservation
Commission. Russell said it’s important to understand the regulatory aspects of the proposal. Lewis
suggested that Arrowwood Environmental might be able to present their proposal. Russell said that a
representative from Shelburne might also be a resource as Arrowwood Environmental had completed
regulatory mapping for Shelburne.

Paton asked if any resolution came from the DRB’s agenda item on frontage requirements.
Russell felt that this topic will coincide with the Town Plan update. This led to discussion of
straightforward updates that DRB members had identified. These will be sent to Kaplan for
consolidation.

Russell noted that LURSs pertaining to Thompson’s Point was discussed at the Joint Meeting and
the Planning Commission will be reviewing a redline of proposed updates that was created in August
2024 at their next regular meeting. Russell suggested that the DRB review Thompson’s Point LURs and
establish consensus on interpretation.

Agenda item for PC/DRB/CCC Next Joint Meeting:
See above.

Review of DRB Rules of Procedure:

Lewis had a suggestion for Section III: Definitions, item F. Executive Session. Specifically,
consideration of legal advice instead of legal services should be listed under rationale to enter. Russell
agreed.

Lewis moved to G. Ex Parte Communication in the same section. Lewis asked if speaking with
the town’s attorney or a representative from the state is permitted and if so, should that be made clear in
the definition. Tenney felt that the DRB only should use that which is presented by an applicant.
Contacting the state with a question specific to an application would be considered Ex Parte
Communication. Lewis reiterated the question about consultation with the town’s attorney. Tenney felt
that was acceptable. Lewis asked about discrepancy in opinions between the state and the DRB. Tenney
said there should be a disclaimer in every decision that an applicant must follow all applicable state



97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

page 3 Development Review Board 09/10/2025

requirements. Bouchard asked what occurs when the state passes a statute that negates local bylaws.
Tenney responded that the statute would override. Russell pointed to an interpretation of bylaws that
was made clearer through legal precedent. Paton said his issue with the definition is that a person
interested as outlined in the definition of Ex Parte Communication, contradicts the definition of
Interested Persons. Russell suggested that interested persons as defined in H. Interested Persons should
be added. Paton then asked what indirect communication is. Consensus to remove indirect or direct
communication and replace with communication. Paton had a further abbreviation of the definition
removing the listing of parties that Ex Parte Communication might occur with. Discussion of when Ex
Parte Communication should be disclosed. Conclusion, at next relevant proceeding.

Paton moved to H. Interested Persons, also in Section III, and suggested abbreviating. Russell
said the definition was taken from state statute. This led to discussion of bylaw versus bylaws and the
suggestion to add bylaws to Section III.

Russell moved to Section X: Decisions and asked Tenney about past procedures. Russell asked if
draft decisions need to be voted on for approval. Consensus that voting to approve would continue.
Russell then asked what can be used in Deliberations. Tenney said in the past, the Zoning Administrator
would collect and present materials, such as a lister card, and present to the DRB.

Adjourn:
MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Doug Paton, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 4
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:06pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary




